17. All alterations in the rules of the society must be made at a general meeting of subscribers.

18. If the funds of the society are not sufficient to meet the current demands caused by accidents it shall be in the power of the committee to levy a further weekly sum of 6d. from each member.

19. A notice posted on the office of the company shall be deemed sufficient for the purpose of calling meetings.

20. No members of the fund will countenance any subscription-list after formation of this fund.

21. In case of death from accident the sum of £7 to be given as funeral expenses to wife or other relative of

EXHIBIT 59.

SIR,-St. Leonards, New South Wales, 5th July, 1897.

It has come under my notice that in evidence given before your Commission a rule of the Bank of New Zealand Guarantee and Provident Association is said to have been "made elastic and comfortable" for me.

The Commission will, I trust, permit me to say that no rule was so treated on my behalf; nor was any rule made, altered, or strained for that purpose. I was as unquestionably entitled to pension under the original, and then existing, rules of the fund as any person who has received pension.

This can, if thought necessary, be easily verified by inquiry into the circumstances.

I have, &c., JOHN MURRAY.

The Chairman, New Zealand Parliamentary Commission on Private Benefit Societies.

EXHIBIT 60.

EMPLOYÉS' PROVIDENT FUND OF THE COLONIAL SUGAR-REFINING COMPANY (LIMITED). AMENDED RULES AND REGULATIONS.

This indenture, made the 9th day of September, 1890, between the Colonial Sugar-refining Company (Limited), duly registered under the provisions of "The Companies Act, 1874" (hereinafter called "the said company"), of the first part; Edward William Knox, Waldemar Henrik Rothe, Thomas Utrick Walton, George Henry Robinson, and William Dickey (hereinafter called "the trustees") of the second part; and the employés of the company subscribing to the employés' provident fund, hereinafter referred to, who are now or may hereafter be on the staff or otherwise in the employ of the company, and whose names are given or intended to be given in the schedule hereto (hereinafter called "the subscribers"), of the third part: Whereas it has been resolved by the company that an employés' provident fund should be instituted in lieu of the provident fund now in existence (hereinafter referred to as "the old fund"), which is limited to portion only of the staff of the said company, and which it is intended to wind up and discontinue, and towards which employés' provident fund the company should give a donation of £2,000, besides a further monthly subscription equal to the subscribers' contributions to such fund for the same period, but not exceeding the sum of £3,500 [altered to £3,500, 3rd January, 1893] in any one year. And, further, that such of the present employés as may desire to participate in the benefits of the said fund, and all other employés who at any future time may, under the following rules, be admitted as subscribers, should contribute 2½ per cent. per annum, or such further or lesser percentage of their respective salaries and allowances or wages as is hereafter provided, towards keeping up and providing funds for the increase, support, and better working of the said fund: And whereas it is desirable that the rules and regulations, conditions, provisions, and agreements with regard to such fund should be clearly set out: Now this indenture witnesseth that, in pursuance of the aforesaid resolution, paid by the com This indenture, made the 9th day of September, 1890, between the Colonial Sugar-refining Company (Limited), duly

1. The objects of the fund shall be to provide life insurance and pensions for the permanent employés of the company subscribers thereto.

2. The fund shall be under the control and management of five trustees—namely, the general manager or acting general manager of the company, who shall be chairman of the trustees; two trustees to be elected every three years by ballot by the subscribers to the fund in the Sydney office of the company from the following officers of the company—namely, the secretary, the manager of the Pyrmont Refinery, the chief clerk, the principal chemist, the head book-keeper, and the head draughtsman; and two trustees, to be foremen at Pyrmont Refinery, in receipt of weekly wages, but not being members of the local committee, to be chosen by the directors of the company, one of them retiring each year, and not being eligible for re-election for twelve months subsequent to such retirement. The first trustees of the fund shall be Edward William Knox, Waldemar Henrik Rothe, Thomas Utrick Walton, George Henry Robinson, and William Dickey, all of whom at the present time fulfil the respective requirements before mentioned mentioned.

3. The trustees elected by the subscribers in the Sydney office shall be eligible for re-election, and in case of any

3. The trustees elected by the subscribers in the Sydney office shall be eligible for re-election, and in case of any extraordinary vacancy occurring in the trust the remaining trustees, or a majority of them, shall elect another trustee, who shall retire at the expiration of his predecessor's term of office.

4. The amount standing at the credit of the members of the old fund intended to be wound up and discontinued shall be transferred to the new fund, with the exception of such sum or sums contributed by any subscriber or subscribers to the old fund who decline to become subscribers to the new fund. The subscribers to the old fund who shall elect to become subscribers to the new fund ashall have the right to apply the amount respectively subscribed by them to such fund, with interest thereon, to dating back their membership in the new fund, in accordance with the scheme prepared and submitted by the trustees of the old fund to such subscribers; but no subscriber shall be allowed to date back beyond the time at which he entered the service of the company.

[Altered 3rd January, 1893.]

5. The said sum of £2,000, together with the amount to be transferred to the credit of the fund in accordance with the provisions of the last foregoing clause, and all donations, contributions and payments, interest, income, accretions, accumulations, and profits whatsoever at any time hereafter arising from or made in connection with the accretions, accumulations, and profits whatsoever at any time hereafter arising from or made in connection with the said fund, shall, to the extent of one-half the amount thereof, be invested by the trustees on deposit with the company, and shall bear interest at the rate of 6 per cent. per annum, calculated on the monthly balance at the credit of the fund, and, as to the other half of the amount thereof, be invested by the trustees in the purchase of fully-paid-up shares in the company, at the then current market price, or in such other investment as the trustees, or majority of them, shall agree upon and the directors shall sanction. The trustees shall have full liberty from time to time to transpose any such investments, and for that purpose they shall have power to sign, seal, execute, and deliver all transfers, receipts, discharges, releases, or other documents whatsoever, for the better and more effectually enabling them to deal with such investments; but no liability shall in anywise attach to the said trustees in respect of any losses in connection with any investments hereunder or otherwise howsoever.

6. Meetings of the trustees shall be held half-yearly, or oftener if deemed necessary, at which meetings three of the trustees shall form a quorum, but one of those present must be a trustee elected by the subscribers and one a

the trustees shall form a quorum, but one of those present must be a trustee elected by the subscribers and one a trustee appointed by the directors. Every question shall be decided by a majority of votes, and the chairman shall, in addition to his ordinary vote, have a casting-vote. Two days' notice shall be given to each trustee of all such

meetings.
7. The trustees shall have the complete management and control of all matters, things, and proceedings in connection with the fund, which is to be administered in accordance with these presents.

8. At each refinery and sugar-mill of the company the details of business in connection with the administration by them.